
 

 

 

                                                                                                                                                 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
  

 
  

 
  

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 

STEVE SISOLAK TERRY REYNOLDS 
Governor Director B&I 

STATE OF NEVADA DAWN GIBBONS 
Chair 

GEORGE ASSAD 
Commissioner 

R. DAVID GROOVER 
Commissioner 

DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND INDUSTRY 

NEVADA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

MINUTES OF THE October 27, 2022 GENERAL SESSION 

AGENDA 

1. Call to Order 
Chairman Dawn Gibbons called the meeting to order at 9:30 a.m. 

2. Roll Call 
Present in Reno: Chairman Dawn Gibbons  Present in Las Vegas: Commissioner R. David 
Groover, Deputy Commissioner Jennifer De Rose, Administrative Attorney Patricia Erickson, 
Financial Analyst Yvonne Shelton, Financial Analyst Paul Servello, Deputy Attorney General 
Matthew Feeley  

3. Pledge of Allegiance 
IT Professional Jeffrey Berry led a recital of the pledge. 

4. Public Comment 
Kimberly Maxson-Rushton, Esq on behalf of the Livery Operators Association, offered 
comments regarding fines levied on illegal operators.  Keith Gibson, Esq, Yellow Cab, stated 
the illegal operators need higher fines to protect the public and deter the repeat offense. Drew 
Ribar offered the same comments 

5. Approval of Agenda  
Financial Analyst Yvonne Shelton requested the following items be removed from consideration, 
Items 164 through 172 and Item 174, that Items 128 – 131 be considered together, that Items 138-
140 be considered together and that Items 153 and 154 be considered together.  Approved as 
modified 2-0 

6. Approval of the Minutes of the September 8, 2022 Agenda Meeting 
Approved 2-0 

7. Briefings from the Commissioners 
Commissioner Groover welcomed new employees, Doreatha Ross and Becky Rios.  Chairman 
Gibbons echoed his comments.  

8. Briefing from the Deputy Commissioner 
Deputy Commissioner De Rose echoed the comments made by Commissioner Groover.  



 

 

 

 
 

 
  

 
 

  
 
     
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

9. Report of Legal Counsel 
Deputy Attorney General Matthew Feeley reported in the Sierra West matter, they have filed an 
Appeal to the Ninth Circuit, briefings are due October 31, 2022.  In the Marji matter, the Motion 
for Reconsideration was denied, they have filed an Appeal to the Supreme Court.  

ADMINISTRATIVE CITATIONS AND IMPOUNDMENTS 
Items 10 through 104, were considered collectively.  Approved 2-0 

10. Citation 22632 issued to Paul M. Sprada d/b/a AA Buffalo One Towing for the violation of NAC 
706.203(4) (DG) 

11. Citation 22867 issued to Insel Antonio Gonzalez-Galera for a violation of NRS 706.386 (DG) 

12. Citation 23277 and Impounds I-4232 and I-4233 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 
for vehicles registered to and Citation 23277 issued to Jose Soriano for violation of NRS 706.386 
(DG) 

13. Citation 23955 and 23956 and Impound I-4503 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of 
a vehicle registered to and Citations 23955 and 23956 issued to Victor Lopez-Romero for 
violations of NRS 706A.280 and NRS 706.386 (DG)  

14. Citation 23959 and 23960 and Impound I-4504 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of 
a vehicle registered to and Citations 23959 and 23960 issued to Shou Gang Yang for violations of 
NRS 706.386 and NRS 706A.280 (DG) 

15. Impound I-3817 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to Damirsy 
Galera-Alvarez (DG)  

16. Citation 19745 and Impound I-3847 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle 
registered to and Citation 19745 issued to Yordanis Rodriguez-Antigua for violations of NRS 
706.386 and NRS 706.758 (GA) 

17. Citation 21274 issued to Mammoth Limousine, a series of Platinum LV Transportation LLC for 
the violation of NAC 706.229 (GA) 

18. Citations 21943 & 21944 issued to Las Vegas Wedding Services for the violation of NAC 
706.203(4); NAC 706.2473; NAC 706.2473 ref. 49 CFR 382.301 and NAC 706.2473 ref. 49 CFR 
391.51 (GA) 

19. Citation 22066 and Impound I-4415 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle 
registered to and Citation 22066 issued to Praveen Krishna Reddy for violation of NRS 706.386 
and NRS 706.758 (GA) 

20. Citations 22347, 22348, 22349, 22350 and 23426 issued to Artin’s Towing, LLC and Vregh 
Amirian for violations of NAC 706.2473 ref 49 CFR 382.305 (3 counts), NAC 706.2473 ref 49 
391.51 (2 counts), NAC 706.2473 ref 49 CFR 391.11 (3 counts), NAC 706.2473 ref 49 382.301 (2 
counts), NAC 706.2473 ref 49 CFR 391.23 (3 counts), NAC 706.2473 ref 49 CFR 396.3, NRS 
706.398 and NAC 706.2473 ref 49 CFR 391.41 (GA)  



 

 

  
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
  
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

21. Citation 22356 issued to Go & Go Towing and Transport, LLC for violation of NAC 706.191 
(GA) 

22. Citation 22385 issued to Celebrity Coaches, a series of Platinum LV Transportation LLC for the 
violations of NAC 706.191 and NRS 706.398 (GA)  

23. Citation 22865 and 22866 and Impound I-3311 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of 
a vehicle registered to and Citations 22865 and 22866 issued to Idalberto Campos-Santiesteban for 
violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706A.280 (GA) 

24. Citation 22872 and 22873 and Impound I-4480 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of 
a vehicle registered to and Citations 22872 and 22873 issued to Jesus Madriz for violations of 
NRS 706.386 and NRS 706A.280 (GA) 

25. Citation 22894 issued to Renato Oliveira De Aguilar for a violation of NRS 706.386 (GA)  

26. Citation 22896 issued to Mohamed Bedrie Hussien for violation of NAC 706.228 and NAC 
706.311 (GA) 

27. Citation 22979 and 22980 and Impound I-4482 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of 
a vehicle registered to and Citations 22979 and 22980 issued to Assefa Sinke for violations of 
NRS 706.386 and NRS 706A.280 (GA) 

28. Citation 23016, 23017, 23020 and 23021 issued to Allvalley, LLC d/b/a Code Blue Towing for 
violation of NAC 706.420(i)(g) (2 counts), NAC 706.4275(i)c(4) (5 counts), NRS 706.4477(1)(a) 
(5 counts), NAC 706.432(1), NAC 706.4275(1)c(4) and NRS 706.4477(1)(a) (GA)  

29. Citations 23111, 23112, 23376, 23802 and 23422 issued to Reno-Sparks Cab for the violations 
of: NAC 706.2473 ref CFR 382.305(i)(3)(81 counts); NAC 706.2473 ref CFR 382.305(d)(1); 
NAC 706.2473 ref CFR 382.305 (g) & (h); NAC 706.13775; NAC 706.203(4)(3 counts) and NRS 
706.398 (GA) 

30. Citation 23142, 23143, 23144, 23145, 23146 and 23147 issued to Capitol Cab for the violations 
of: NAC 706.2473 ref CFR 382.305 (9 counts); NAC 706.2473 ref CFR 391.51(9)(a) (228 
counts); NAC 706.2473 ref CFR 396.3(b)(3))(4 counts); NAC 706.2473 ref CFR 396.5(a)(b); 
NAC 706.2473 ref CFR 396.17(3 counts); NAC 706.2473 ref CFR 396.21 (3 counts); NAC 
706.2473 ref CFR 396.3(c ) (4 counts); NAC 706.2473 ref CFR 382.305(i)(3) (11 counts); NAC 
706.2473 ref CFR 382.305(d)(1); NAC 706.2473 re CFR 382.305 (g) & (h); NAC 706.4018 and 
NRS 706.398 (2 counts) (GA) 

31. Citation 23115, 23116, 21432, 23209, 20872, 23217 and 22600 issued to Executive Limousine 
for the violations of: NAC 706.2473 ref CFR 382.305 (9 counts); NAC 706.2473 ref CFR 
391.51(9)(a) (228 counts); NAC 706.2473 ref CFR 396.3(b)(3))(4 counts); NAC 706.2473 ref 
CFR 396.5(a)(b); NAC 706.2473 ref CFR 396.17 (3 counts); NAC 706.2473 ref CFR 396.21 (3 
counts); NAC 706.2473 ref CFR 396.3(c ) (4 counts); NAC 706.2473 ref CFR 382.305(i)(3) (11 
counts); NAC 706.2473 ref CFR 382.305(d)(1); NAC 706.2473 re CFR 382.305 (g) & (h);NAC 
706.4018 and NRS 706.398 (3 counts) (GA) 



 

 

  

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
  
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
  
 
   
 
 

 
 
 

 

32. Citation 23239, 23281, 23288, 23385 and 23389 issued to Whittlesea Checker Taxi, a Series of 
Platinum LV Transportation LLC, for the violations of NAC 706.3745.4; NAC 706.191; NAC 
706.3747; NRS 706.398 and NAC 706.206(1) (GA)  

33. Citation 23286, 23287 and 23289 issued to Airport Mini Bus, a Series of Platinum LV 
Transportation LLC, for the violations of NRS 706.386; NRS 706.758; NAC 706.194; NAC 
706.360 and NRS 706.398 (GA) 

34. Citation 23462 issued to Grecia Chavez Farias d/b/a Road Runner Towing for a violation of NAC 
706.2473 ref. 49 CFR 391.11 (GA) 

35. Citation 23559 and Impound I-4318 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle 
registered to and Citation 23559 issued to Allison Woodson for violation of NRS 706.386 and 
NRS 706.758 (GA) 

36. Citation 23560 and Impound I-4317 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle 
registered to and Citation 23560 issued to Ricardo Guzman for violation of NRS 706.386 and 
NRS 706.758 (GA) 

37. Citation 23564 issued to Teddy Daginis for a violation of NAC 706.203(4) (GA)  

38. Citation 23593 issued to Eduardo Galvan/ Pro Moving Services, LLC for violations of NRS 
706.386 and NRS 706.758 (GA) 

39. Citations 23645 and 23646 issued to Kaptyn Nevada, LLC d/b/a Presidential Limousine for 
violation of NAC 706.203(4) (5 counts) (GA)  

40. Citations 23679 and 23800 and Impound I-4497 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of 
a vehicle registered to and Citations 23800 and 23679 issued to Degol Abraha for violations of 
NRS 706A.280 and NRS 706.386 (GA) 

41. Citation 23764 issued to AWG Ambassador, LLC d/b/a Universal Limousine Service Operated 
by Universal Limousine Service LLC for violation of NAC 706.2473 ref 49 CFR 382.305 (6 
counts) (GA) 

42. Citation 23778 and 23779 and Impound I-4413 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of 
a vehicle registered to and Citations 23778 and 23779 issued to Abel Negussie for violations of 
NRS 706.386 and NRS 706A.280 (GA) 

43. Citation 23789 issued to Tasha Lathroum for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.758 (GA)  

44. Citation 23790 issued to Abdelaziz Mohammed for violation of NAC 706.228 (GA)  

45. Citation 23795 and 23796 and Impound I-4476 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of 
a vehicle registered to and Citations 23795 and 23796 issued to Eriberto Rodriguez-Serrano for 
violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706A.280 (GA) 

46. Citation 23797 and Impound I-4477 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle 
registered to and Citation 23797 issued to Tami Valentine for violation of NRS 706.386 and NRS 
706.758 (GA) 



 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

  
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
  
 
  
 
  
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

47. Citation 23798 and Impound I-4414 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle 
registered to and Citation 23798 issued to Michael Yslas for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 
706.758 (GA) 

48. Impound I-3825 The impoundment, pursuant to NRS 706.476, of a vehicle registered to Platinum 
LV Transportation d/b/a Mammoth Limousine (GA)  

49. Impound I-4416 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to Reynaldo 
M Hernandez (GA) 

50. Impound I-4427 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 for of a vehicle registered to 
Romelia Orozco (GA)  

51. Impound I-4473 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to Geoffrey 
Dickey (GA) 

52. Impound I-4487 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to U-Haul 
Co. of Arizona (GA) 

53. Impound I-4488 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to U-Haul 
Co. of Arizona (GA) 

54. Impound I-4498 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to U-Haul 
Co. of Arizona (GA) 

55. Citation 19744 issued to Exotic Transportation, Inc. d/b/a Elite Transportation for a violation of 
NRS 706.462 (RDG) 

56. Citation 19950 issued to Baumbach Enterprises, LLC for violation of NAC 706.4275 and NAC 
706.194 (RDG) 

57. Citation 22214 issued to Five Star Limo, LLC for a violation of NAC 706.206(1) (RDG)  

58. Citation 22215 issued to Daisy Mendoza for a violation of NAC 706.13775 (RDG)  

59. Citation 22216 issued to LifeTrans, Inc. for a violation of NRS 706.462 (RDG)  

60. Citation 22621 issued to Platinum LV Transportation d/b/a Mammoth Limousine for the violation 
of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.426 (RDG) 

61. Citation 22947 and 22948 and Impound I-4500 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of 
a vehicle registered to and Citations 22947 and 22948 issued to Mohamed Thiam for violations of 
NRS 706.386 and NRS 706A.280 (RDG) 

62. Citation 23015 issued to Eagle Limo, LLC for a violation of NAC 706.2473 ref. 49 CFR 382.305 
(RDG) 



 

 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
  
 
  
 
 

 

63. Citation 23269 and Impound I-4244 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle 
registered to and Citation 23269 issued to Michael McCallum for violation of NRS 706.386 
(RDG) 

64. Citation 23270 and Impound I-4215 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle 
registered to and Citation 23270 issued to Eugene Plummer for violation of NRS 706.386 and 
NRS 706.758 (RDG) 

65. Citation 23282 and Impound I-4217 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle 
registered to and Citation 23282 issued to Darrin Phillips for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 
706.758 (RDG) 

66. Citation 23283 and Impound I-4235 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle 
registered to and Citation 23283 issued to Seth Linder for violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 
706.758 (RDG) 

67. Citation 23379 issued to Casey Skruch for the violations of NAC 706.2473 ref 49 CFR 382.211 
and NAC 706.1378 (RDG) 

68. Citations 23380 and 23586 issued to Brett Luke/ Above and Beyond Moving for violations of 
NRS 706.386 (2 counts) and NRS 706.758 (2 counts) (RDG)  

69. Citation 23463 and Impound I-3666 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle 
registered to and Citation 23463 issued to Jessica Cooks/ Jonathan Cooks/Jess Vibe for violation 
of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.758 (RDG) 

70. Citations 23517 and 23814 issued to Holiday Motor Coach, LLC for violations of NAC 
706.203(4) (3 counts) (RDG) 

71. Citation 23518 issued to Personal Sedan Service, LLC d/b/a PSS for violation of NAC 706.203(4) 
(RDG) 

72. Citation 23562 and 23563 and Impound I-4308 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of 
a vehicle registered to and Citations 23562 and 23563 issued to Reynold Panganiban for violations 
of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706A.280 (RDG) 

73. Citation 23594 and Impound I-4485 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle 
registered to and Citation 23594 issued to Luis Canseco/Luisito’s Parking & Assistance, LLC for 
violations of NRS 706.386 and NRS 706.758 (RDG) 

74. Citation 23595, 23596, 23597 and 23598 issued to Master Towing Inc. for violations of: NAC 
706.4275 (two counts); NAC 706.1376 (2 counts); NRS 706.4465; NAC 706.194; NRS 706.4467 
(2 counts); NAC 706.432 (2 counts) and NRS 706.398 (RDG)  

75. Citation 23600 issued to Jason Alexander Stone for a violation of NRS 706.386 (RDG)  

76. Citation 23668 issued to Beniyam K. Fekade for a violation of NAC 706.228 (RDG)  

77. Citation 23750 issued to Safeco Parking & Transportation Services, LLC for violation of NAC 
706.203(4) (RDG) 



 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
  
 
  
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
  
 
  

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
  
 
 

 
 
  
 

78. Citation 23761 issued to AWG Ambassador, LLC d/b/a AWG Charter Services, AWG 
Ambassador Operated by Personal Sedan Service LLC d/b/a PSS for violation of NAC 706.2473 
ref 49 CFR 382.305 (2 counts) (RDG)  

79. Citation 23762 issued to AWG Ambassador, LLC d/b/a AWG Charter Services, AWG 
Ambassador Operated by Personal Sedan Service LLC d/b/a PSS for violation of NAC 706.2473 
ref 49 CFR 382.305 (6 counts) (RDG)  

80. Citation 23786 and 23787 and Impound I-4462 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of 
a vehicle registered to and Citations 23786 and 23787 issued to Hien Duc Nguyen for violations of 
NRS 706.386 and NRS 706A.280 (RDG) 

81. Citation 23788 issued to Mesfin Woube for violation of NAC 706.228 (RDG)  

82. Citation 23791 issued to Christopher Westbrook for a violation of NRS 706.386. (RDG) 

83. Citation 23792 and 23793 and Impound I-4475 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of 
a vehicle registered to and Citations 23792 and 23793 issued to Sara Ayass for violations of NRS 
706.386 and NRS 706A.280 (RDG) 

84. Citation 23794 and Impound I-4460 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle 
registered to and Citation 23794 issued to Robert Lonschein for violation of NRS 706.386 and 
NRS 706.758 (RDG) 

85. Citation 23801 issued to AAAA Two Star Towing, Inc. d/b/a AAAA Two Star Towing  for 
violation of NAC 706.203(4) (6 counts) (RDG)  

86. Citation 23803 issued to Minden Taxi, Ltd. for violations of NAC 706.203(4) (2 counts) (RDG) 

87. Citation 23806 issued to Phoenix Movers, Inc. d/b/a Carney’s Full Service Movers for violations 
of NAC 706.203(4) (2 counts) (RDG)  

88. Citation 23808 issued to Dependable Tow, Inc. for violation of NAC 706.203(4) (3 counts) 
(RDG) 

89. Citation 23810 issued to Nevada North American, Inc. d/b/a Capitol North American for violation 
of NAC 706.203(4) (5 counts) (RDG)  

90. Citation 23811 issued to Ace World Wide Moving and Storage Co Inc d/b/a Ace World Wide of 
Nevada for violation of NAC 706.203(4) (2 counts) (RDG)  

91. Citation 23812 issued to Lucky Trans., LLC for violation of NAC 706.203(4) (RDG)  

92. Citations 23813 and 23833 issued to SW Excursion & Educational Tours, Inc. d/b/a Sweetours 
for violations of NAC 706.203(4) (10 counts) (RDG)  

93. Citation 23815 issued to 777 Towing, Inc for violations of NAC 706.203(4) (3 counts). (RDG) 



 

 

 
 

 
 

   
 
 

 
 
 

   
 
 

   
 
 

   
 

 
   

 
  

   
 
    
 
 

   
 
  

   
 
 

 
 

 

   

 
 

 

 

94. Citation 23816 issued to Metropolitan Towing Company, LLC d/b/a Western States Towing for 
violation of NAC 706.203(4) (RDG)  

95. Citations 23820 and 23821 issued to Perlman Enterprises, LLC d/b/a Reno Tahoe Limousine for 
violation of NAC 706.203(4) (13 counts) (RDG) 

96. Citation 23823 issued to Whittlesea Checker Taxi A Series Platinum LV Transportation, LLC 
d/b/a Whittlesea Checker Taxi for violation of NAC 706.203(4) (RDG)  

97. Citation 23824 issued to J & N Enterprises, LLC d/b/a Silver State Towing of Northern Nevada, 
Silver State Towing for violations of NAC 706.203(4) (2 counts) (RDG) 

98. Citation 23835 issued to Ashley’s Towing, Inc. d/b/a Ashley’s Towing for violation of NAC 
706.203(4) (RDG) 

99. Citation 23836 issued to Adam Transportation, LLC d/b/a Lucky 7’s for violation of NAC 
706.203(4) (RDG) 

100. Citation 23838 issued to Roman’s Towing, LLC d/b/a Roman’s Towing for violation of NAC 
706.203(4) (RDG) 

101. Citation 23839 issued to Exotic Transportation, Inc. d/b/a Elite Transportation for violation of 
NAC 706.203(4) (RDG) 

102. Citation 23877 issued to CH Destinations, Inc. for a violation of NRS 706.465 (RDG) 

103. Impound I-4466 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to EAN 
Holdings, LLC (RDG) 

104. Impound I-4474 The impoundment pursuant to NRS 706.476 of a vehicle registered to Hernan 
Lopez (RDG) 

APPLICATIONS FOR CERTIFICATES OF PUBLIC CONVENIENCE AND 
NECESSITY TO PROVIDE TOW CAR SERVICE 

105. Docket 21-10036 The Joint Application of Justin T. Zane for authority to sell and transfer and Zane 
Investigations, Inc. to purchase and acquire 33% of the corporate stock of Zane Investigations, Inc., 
granted under CPCN 7442. Staff investigation concluded. (RDG)  
Financial Analyst Paul Servello summarized the application and indicated staff support.   
Approved 2-0 

106. Docket 22-06013 The Application of Imperial Towing Transport, LLC d/b/a Imperial Towing 
Transport for a certificate of public convenience and necessity to provide consent-only tow car 
service by tow car vehicle within the State of Nevada.  Staff investigation concluded. (GA)  
Financial Analyst Paul Servello summarized the application and indicated staff support.  
Approved 2-0 



 

 

  
 

 

 
 

 
 

  

   

 
 

   

 
 

 
 

  
  

   

 
 

   

 
 

 

 

107. Docket 22-06031 The Application of Black Eagle Towing, LLC d/b/a Black Eagle Towing for a 
certificate of public convenience and necessity to provide consent-only tow car service by tow car 
vehicle within the State of Nevada. Staff investigation concluded. (RDG) 
Financial Analyst Paul Servello summarized the application and indicated staff support. Approved 
2-0 

APPLICATIONS FOR CERTIFICATES OF PUBLIC CONVENIENCE AND 
NECESSITY TO PROVIDE CHARTER BUS SERVICE 

108. Docket 20-09009 The Application of Passion Transportation, LLC for a certificate of public 
convenience and necessity to provide charter bus service within the State of Nevada.  Staff 
investigation concluded. (RDG) 
Financial Analyst Paul Servello summarized the application and indicated staff support. Brent 
Carson, Esq appeared on behalf of the Applicant. Approved 2-0 

109. Docket 22-02031 The Application of Tony Life, LLC for a certificate of public convenience and 
necessity to provide charter bus service within the State of Nevada. Staff investigation concluded. 
(DG) 
Financial Analyst Paul Servello summarized the application and indicated staff support. Brent 
Carson, Esq appeared on behalf of the Applicant. Approved 2-0 

110. Docket 22-05018 The Application of Las Vegas Raiders Huddle Shuttle, LLC d/b/a Las Vegas 
Raiders Huddle Shuttle, Las Vegas Huddle Shuttle for a certificate of public convenience and 
necessity to provide charter bus service within the State of Nevada. Staff investigation concluded. 
(DG) 
Financial Analyst Paul Servello summarized the application and indicated staff concerns that the 
public would assume a Raiders affiliation.  Item tabled to the next subsequent Agenda.  Approved 
2-0 

111. Docket 22-05027 The Application of Kiara Limousine Service, LLC d/b/a KLS for a certificate of 
public convenience and necessity to provide charter bus service within the State of Nevada.  Staff 
investigation concluded. (GA) 
Financial Analyst Paul Servello summarized the application and indicated staff support.  
Brent Carson, Esq appeared on behalf of the Applicant. Approved 2-0 

112. Docket 22-06016 The Application of Las Vegas Black Limo, LLC d/b/a Black Vegas Party Bus 
for a certificate of public convenience and necessity to provide charter bus service within the State 
of Nevada. Staff investigation concluded. (GA)  
Financial Analyst Paul Servello summarized the application and indicated staff support.  
James Kent, Esq. appeared on behalf of the Applicant. Approved 2-0 

113. Docket 22-07004 The Application of Jess Vibe Entertainment, LLC d/b/a Jess Vibe Entertainment 
for a certificate of public convenience and necessity to provide charter bus service within the State 
of Nevada. Staff investigation concluded. (DG)  
Financial Analyst Paul Servello summarized the application and indicated staff support.  
Approved 2-0 



 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 
   

 
 

  

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
  

 

MOTION TO EXTEND COMPLIANCE PERIOD 

114.  Docket 19-07021 The motion to extend the compliance period to January 28, 2023, for the 
application of City On The Side, LLC.  Staff investigation concluded. 
Financial Analyst Paul Servello summarized the request and indicated staff support. Kristina 
Kleist, Esq. appeared on behalf of the Applicant.  Approved 2-0 

115. Docket 21-06027 The motion to extend the compliance period to January 29 February 4, 2023, 
for the application of NV Towing & Transport, LLC. Staff investigation concluded.  
Financial Analyst Paul Servello summarized the request and indicated staff support but that this 
be the final extension. Kesiha Lockhart appeared on behalf of the Applicant.  Approved 2-0 

116. Docket 21-09010 The motion to extend the compliance period to January 12, 2023 December 
24, 2022, for the application of True Transportation, LLC d/b/a True Transportation. Staff 
investigation concluded. 
Financial Analyst Paul Servello summarized the request and indicated staff support. James Kent, 
Esq appeared on behalf of the Applicant and indicated the carrier has obtained a vehicle and is 
working to complete the remainder of the compliance items.  Approved 2-0 

REQUEST FOR TEMPORARY DISCONTINUANCE 

117. Docket 22-09019 The temporary discontinuance from August 31, 2022, through February 28, 
2023 of service provided by Frontier Movers, LLC d/b/a Frontier Movers under CPCN 3382. Staff 
investigation concluded. 
Financial Analyst Paul Servello summarized the request and indicated staff support with the 
addition of the filing of their annual report and resolution of any citation to the compliance items. 
Approved 2-0 

118. Docket 22-09002 The temporary discontinuance from September 7, 2022, through March 7, 2023 
of service provided by Inside Vegas, LLC d/b/a Disco Bus Las Vegas under CPCN 2191, Sub 1. 
Staff investigation concluded. 
Financial Analyst Paul Servello summarized the request and indicated staff concerns with sale 
and transfer aspect and that this be the final extension.  Approved 2-0 

119. Docket 22-09005 The temporary discontinuance from July 28, 2022, through January 15, 2023 of 
service provided by Nevada Busing, LLC under CPCN 2233. This requires retroactive approval. 
Staff investigation concluded. 
Financial Analyst Paul Servello summarized the request and indicated staff support.  Approved 
2-0 

120. Docket 22-09013 The temporary discontinuance from September 12, 2022, through March 12, 
2023 of service provided by Isnagas Brother, LLC d/b/a Isnagas Brother under CPCN 7459. This 
requires retroactive approval. Staff investigation concluded. 
Financial Analyst Paul Servello summarized the request and indicated staff is not in support of 
the request. Lucy Elias appeared on behalf of the carrier and stated they have obtained a vehicle. 
Approved as the final discontinuance 2-0 



 

 

 
 

 

 
 

  

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

  

 
 

  

 
 

 

 

121. Docket 22-09018 The temporary discontinuance from September 12, 2022, through December 
31, 2022 of service provided by Abdii Limo Service, LLC d/b/a Abdii Transportation Service 
under CPCN 2221. This requires retroactive approval.  Staff investigation concluded.  

Financial Analyst Paul Servello summarized the request and indicated staff support.   
Approved 2-0 

122. Docket 22-09024 The temporary discontinuance from September 21, 2022, through March 21, 
2023 of service provided by Norma Angelica Farias d/b/a Las Vegas Eagles Towing under CPCN 
7390. Staff investigation concluded.  
Financial Analyst Paul Servello summarized the request and indicated staff support.  Approved 2-0 

123. Docket 22-09027 The temporary discontinuance from September 21, 2022, through March 21, 
2023 of service provided by Fast Towing King, LLC d/b/a Kent Towing King under CPCN 
7527. This requires retroactive approval.  Staff investigation concluded.  
Financial Analyst Paul Servello summarized the request and indicated staff support.   
Approved 2-0 

REQUEST TO EXTEND TEMPORARY DISCONTINUANCE  
OR CONSIDERATION OF ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE 

124. Docket 20-03022 The request to extend temporary discontinuance from September 18, 2022 
through March 15, 2023, of services provided by Portofino Tours Service, Inc. d/b/a 
SEEUSATOURS under Permit MV 6142, and if denied, Staff’s recommendation to issue an 
Order To Show Cause as to why the CPCN should not be revoked. Staff investigation 
concluded. 
Financial Analyst Paul Servello summarized the request and indicated staff support.  Jennifer 
Patterson appeared on behalf of the carrier. Approved 2-0 

125. Docket 21-01007 The request to extend temporary discontinuance from June 30, 2022 through 
December 31, 2022, of services provided by Desert Cab, Inc. d/b/a Odyssey Limousine under 
CPCN 1075, Sub 2, and if denied, Staff’s recommendation to issue an Order To Show Cause as 
to why the CPCN should not be revoked.  This requires retroactive approval.  Staff investigation 
concluded. 
Kimberly Maxson-Rushton, Esq. appeared on behalf of the carrier.  Financial Analyst Paul 
Servello summarized the request and indicated staff support that this be the final extension. 
Approved 2-0 

126. Docket 21-07019 The request to extend temporary discontinuance from July 21, 2022 through 
January 21, 2023, of services provided by Fragela Towing, LLC under CPCN 7427, and if 
denied, Staff’s recommendation to issue an Order To Show Cause as to why the CPCN should 
not be revoked. This requires retroactive approval.  Staff investigation concluded.  
Financial Analyst Paul Servello summarized the request and indicated staff does not support 
and requests and Order to Show Cause. OSC approved 2-0 



 

 

 

  

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

127. Docket 22-03033 The request to extend temporary discontinuance from September 18, 2022 
through March 17, 2023, of services provided by Eagle Ridge Capital, LLC d/b/a DeanMark 
Roadside Assistance under CPCN 7461, and if denied, Staff’s recommendation to issue an Order 
To Show Cause as to why the CPCN should not be revoked.  Staff investigation concluded. 
Financial Analyst Paul Servello summarized the request and indicated staff support as the final 
request. Approved 2-0 

REQUEST FOR APPROVAL TO OPERATE THE OMADI SOFTWARE FOR TOW 
OPERATIONS 

128. Docket 22-05021 The request of Rescue Towing, LLC d/b/a Rescue Towing for approval to use 
the OMADI software system for electronic signatures for services conducted under CPCN 7489.  
Staff investigation concluded. 
Items 128 – 131 were considered collectively. 
Chief Compliance Auditor Rene Revens detailed the request and indicated staff does not support 
this software, until such time as Omadi can provide a demonstration and assurances that any 
changes made to the wet signatures can be verified by staff.  Mr. Garcia, Rescue Towing, 
appeared and offered a lengthy statement in support of the use of the system. Commissioner 
Groover stated he would suggest the Authority require the current users of the system obtain a wet 
signature as well as the digital signature until the issue can be resolved.  Lucas Folletta Esq. 
appeared on behalf of the Northern Nevada Tow Operators Association, Michael Baumbach and 
Drew Ribar appeared in Reno. A lengthy discussion ensued.  Brent Carson, Esq. offered a 
statement in agreement with the tow operators use of the system.  Motion to approve the use of 
Omadi program but the carrier must also acquire a wet signature, until the system can be vetted.  
Approved 2-0 

129. Docket 22-06024 The request of All Star Towing, LLC d/b/a All Star Towing, d/b/a Superior 
Towing for approval to use the OMADI software system for electronic signatures for services 
conducted under CPCN 7317, Sub 1. Staff investigation concluded.  
Items 128 – 131 were considered collectively. 
Chief Compliance Auditor Rene Revens detailed the request and indicated staff does not support 
this software, until such time as Omadi can provide a demonstration and assurances that any 
changes made to the wet signatures can be verified.  Mr. Garcia, Rescue Towing, appeared and 
offered a lengthy statement in support of the use of the system. Commissioner Groover stated he 
would require the current users of the system obtain a wet signature as well as the digital 
signature until the issue can be resolved.  Lucas Folletta Esq appeared on behalf of the Northern 
Nevada Tow Operators Association, Michael Baumbach and Drew Rihbar appeared in Reno.  A 
lengthy discussion ensued. Brent Carson, Esq. offered a statement in agreement with the tow 
operators use of the system. Motion to approve the use of Omadi program but the carrier must 
also acquire a wet signature, until the system can be vetted.  Approved 2-0 

130. Docket 22-07022 The request of TowForLess, LLC d/b/a TowForLess for approval to use the 
OMADI software system for electronic signatures for services conducted under CPCN 7506.  
Staff investigation concluded. 
Items 128 – 131 were considered collectively. 
Chief Compliance Auditor Rene Revens detailed the request and indicated staff does not support 
this software, until such time as Omadi can provide a demonstration and assurances that any 
changes made to the wet signatures can be verified.  Mr. Garcia, Rescue Towing, appeared and 
offered a lengthy statement in support of the use of the system. Commissioner Groover stated he 



 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

would require the current users of the system obtain a wet signature as well as the digital 
signature until the issue can be resolved.  Lucas Folletta Esq appeared on behalf of the Northern 
Nevada Tow Operators Association, Michael Baumbach and Drew Rihbar appeared in Reno.  A 
lengthy discussion ensued. Brent Carson, Esq. offered a statement in agreement with the tow 
operators use of the system. Motion to approve the use of Omadi program but the carrier must 
also acquire a wet signature, until the system can be vetted.  Approved 2-0 

131. Docket 22-08012 The request of Jofam, LLC d/b/a All In Towing for approval to use the OMADI 
software system for electronic signatures for services conducted under CPCN 7520.  Staff 
investigation concluded. 
Items 128 – 131 were considered collectively. 
Chief Compliance Auditor Rene Revens detailed the request and indicated staff does not support 
this software, until such time as Omadi can provide a demonstration and assurances that any 
changes made to the wet signatures can be verified.  Mr. Garcia, Rescue Towing, appeared and 
offered a lengthy statement in support of the use of the system. Commissioner Groover stated he 
would require the current users of the system obtain a wet signature as well as the digital 
signature until the issue can be resolved.  Lucas Folletta Esq appeared on behalf of the 
Northern Nevada Tow Operators Association, Michael Baumbach and Drew Rihbar appeared in 
Reno. A lengthy discussion ensued. Brent Carson, Esq. offered a statement in agreement with 
the tow operators use of the system.  Motion to approve the use of Omadi program but the 
carrier must also acquire a wet signature, until the system can be vetted.  Approved 2-0 

FINANCIAL RATES AND TARIFFS 

132. Docket 22-03013 The Application of Medlife Transportation, LLC d/b/a Medlife Transportation 
for final approval of a tariff rate modification for services conducted under CPCN 1126, Sub 2.  
Staff investigation concluded. 
Financial Analyst Yvonne Shelton detailed the request regarding wait times and indicated staff 
support. Kimberly Maxson-Rushton, Esq. appeared on behalf of the carrier and offered an 
explanation for the requirement of an additional fee for isolation cases.  A discussion ensued 
regarding isolation fees. Motion to approve wait times Approved 2-0 

133. Docket 22-03041 The Application of GMTCARE, LLC for final approval of a tariff rate 
modification for services conducted under CPCN 1115, Sub 3.  Staff investigation concluded. 
Financial Analyst Yvonne Shelton detailed the request regarding wait times and indicated staff 
support. Brent Carson, Esq. appeared on behalf of the carrier and offered an explanation for the 
requirement of an additional fee for isolation cases. A discussion ensued regarding isolation fees.  
Motion to approve wait times Approved 2-0 

134. Docket 22-03042 The Application of Reno Medical Transport, LLC d/b/a GMTCARE for final 
approval of a tariff rate modification for services conducted under CPCN 1143.  Staff 
investigation concluded. 
Financial Analyst Yvonne Shelton detailed the request regarding wait times and indicated staff 
support. Brent Carson, Esq. appeared on behalf of the carrier and offered an explanation for 
the requirement of an additional fee for isolation cases. A discussion ensued regarding isolation 
fees. Motion to approve wait times Approved 2-0 



 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
  

  

 

 

135. Docket 22-08014 The Application of Ashley’s Towing, Inc. d/b/a Ashley’s Towing for approval 
of a tariff rate modification for services conducted under CPCN 7220.  Staff investigation 
concluded. 
Financial Analyst Yvonne Shelton detailed the request and indicated staff support.  Approved 2-0 

136. Docket 22-09025 The Application of Reno Medical Transport, LLC d/b/a GMTCARE for 
approval of a tariff rate modification for services conducted under CPCN 1143.  Staff 
investigation concluded. 
Financial Analyst Yvonne Shelton detailed the request and indicated staff is not in support.  
Brent Carson, Esq. and Emil Bejgu appeared on behalf of the carrier.  Mr. Carson and Mr. 
Bejgu offered a lengthy statement in support of the use of the proposed tariff and service. James 
Kent, Esq. appeared and voiced several questions. A discussion ensued.  Item to be tabled to the 
next subsequent Agenda – Approved 2-0 

137. Docket 22-09026 The Application of United Moving Solutions, Inc. d/b/a United Moving 
Solutions for approval of a tariff rate modification for services conducted under CPCN 3371.  
Staff investigation concluded. 
Financial Analyst Yvonne Shelton detailed the request and indicated staff support.   
Approved 2-0 

138. Docket 22-09030 The Application of B & E, Inc. d/b/a SNAP Towing, Inc. for approval of a tariff 
rate modification for services conducted under CPCN 7042, Sub 2.  Staff investigation concluded.  
Financial Analyst Yvonne Shelton detailed the request and indicated staff support.  Approved 2-0 

139. Docket 22-09033 The Application of Ewing Bros. Inc. d/b/a Ewing Bros. Auto Body for approval 
of a tariff rate modification for services conducted under CPCN 3269, Sub 1.  Staff investigation 
concluded. 
Financial Analyst Yvonne Shelton detailed the request and indicated staff support.  Approved 2-0 

140. Docket 22-09034 The Application of Ewing Bros., Inc. d/b/a Walker Towing, Inc. for approval of 
a tariff rate modification for services conducted under CPCN 7023, Sub 3.  Staff investigation 
concluded. 
Financial Analyst Yvonne Shelton detailed the request and indicated staff support.  Approved 2-0 

DISCUSSION ITEMS 

141. Docket 21-10015 Reconsideration of Model Tow Tariff modifications regarding non-consent 
tows for compliance with NRS 706.4477 (Assembly Bill 301). 
Lucas Folleta, Esq. appeared on behalf of the Nevada Tow Operators Association, questioned 
storage rates, 48 hour rate applicable to A, B and C tows. He stated the concern that the model 
tow tariff was made outside the 233b rule making process and offered a lengthy statement. 
Commissioner Groover suggested the Chairman request an Advisory Opinion from the Attorney 
General’s Office.  Commissioner Groover suggested the Chairman request an Advisory Opinion 
from the Attorney General’s Office. A discussion ensued regarding the length of time an Advisory 
Opinion would take. Motion to request an advisory recommendation regarding the model tow 
tariff concerning AB301 – Approved 2-0 



 

 

  

  

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 

 
 

 

  

   

  

 

 

 

142. Docket 22-04002 Discussion regarding COVID rates and whether or not they are still needed or 
should be rescinded and the effect on current carriers that may have these rates in their tariff. 
Tabled from prior general session. 
Financial Analyst Yvonne Shelton stated at the July session staff requested back up documentation 
to support the rates. As of this date, staff has not received any documentation.  James Kent, Esq. 
stated a sanitization fee was reasonable, however the use of a “COVID” fee could probably be 
eliminated. Commissioner Groover stated financial verification was requested to justify the expense 
and nothing has been submitted. Kimberly Maxson-Rushton, Esq. appeared on behalf of the Livery 
Operators Association requested that if the rates are rescinded, that the carriers be given 30 to 60 
days to facilitate changes.  Brent Carson, Esq. offered the statement that there is a difference 
between a limousine and the NEMT transportation. Motion to rescind all COVID rates and that 
fully regulated carriers be given 45 days to comply.  Approved 2-0 

143. Docket 22-07005 and 22-05013 The request for an advisory opinion regarding whether (1) a 
vehicle, modified by Michael Rossetti, President of Double Decker Bus Company of Las Vegas, 
LLC, is a bus, as defined by NAC 706.022, and/or (2) whether this modified vehicle can be placed 
into service by the Double Decker Bus Company of Las Vegas, LLC and if denied, to consider the 
Order to Show Cause as to why CPCN 2120 should not be revoked. Tabled from prior general 
session 
Michael Rosetti appeared. Chief of Compliance Rene Revens stated Mr. Rosetti has an 
appointment with DMV to get the vehicle properly registered.  Mr. Rosetti agreed to file an 
extension for his temporary discontinuance.  No advisory opinion to be issued – Approved 2-0 

144. Public Comment 
none 

1:15 PM AFTERNOON SESSION 

145. Public Comment 
none 

PETITIONS FOR RECONSIDERATION 
Items 146 through 148 were considered collectively – Approved 2-0 

146. Docket 22-08027 Petition for Reconsideration of Driver Permit #4082 for Tim Sanderfer 

147. Docket 22-08031 Petition for Reconsideration of Driver Permit #9402 for Ben Moreno 

148. Docket 22-08032 Petition for Reconsideration of Driver Permit #8853 for Kenneth Stewart 



 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
  

 

 
 
 

 

NAME CHANGES 

149. Docket 22-08013 The Petition of WTH Commercial Services, LLC for approval to change their 
name by adding a fictitious firm name to do business as Mountain Crew Change for services 
provided under CPCN 2302, Sub 1. Staff investigation concluded. 
Financial Analyst Paul Servello detailed the request and indicated staff support.  Matt Morris, 
Esq. appeared on behalf of the carrier. Approved 2-0 

APPLICATIONS FOR FULLY REGULATED CARRIERS 

150. Docket 17-08026 The Application of United Royal Coach, LLC for a certificate of public 
convenience and necessity to provide charter limousine service within Clark and Nye Counties, 
Nevada. Staff investigation concluded. (DG) 
Financial Analyst Paul Servello detailed the application and indicated staff support. Aniela K 
Szymanski, Esq. appeared on behalf of the Applicant.  Approved 2-0 

151. Docket 20-01022 The Application of Sunset Limousine Services, LLC for a certificate of public 
convenience and necessity to provide charter limousine service within Washoe, Storey, Douglas, 
Lyon, Churchill Counties and Carson City on the one hand and points and places within the State 
of Nevada on the other. Staff investigation concluded. (RDG)  
Financial Analyst Paul Servello detailed the application and indicated staff support. Pete 
Cladianos, Esq. appeared on behalf of the Applicant. Approved 2-0  
. 

152. Docket 21-10032 The Application of Phoenix Movers, LLC d/b/a Carney’s Full Service Movers 
for an expansion of authority granted under CPCN 3258, Sub 4, within the State of Nevada.  Staff 
investigation concluded. (GA) 
Financial Analyst Paul Servello detailed the application and indicated staff support.  
Approved 2-0 

153. Docket 22-03030 and 22-03031 The Joint Ex Post Facto Applications of William Floyd for 
authority to sell and transfer and Mulugeta Abraham to purchase and acquire 51% of the 
corporate stock of Abraham Limo Services, Inc. d/b/a ALV, a carrier authorized to provide 
charter limousine service and charter bus service within the State of Nevada granted under 
CPCNs 1104 and 2159, respectively. Staff investigation concluded. (RDG)  
Items 153 and 154 were heard collectively. Brent Carson, Esq. appeared on behalf of the 
Applicants. Financial Analyst Paul Servello detailed the application and indicated staff 
support. Approved 2-0 

154. Docket 21-12030 The Joint Ex Post Facto Applications of Abraham Limo Service, Inc. d/b/a 
ALV to sell and transfer and Royalty Luxury Transportation, LLC to purchase and acquire the 
authority to provide charter limousine service within Clark County, Nevada granted under 
CPCN 1125, Sub 2. Staff investigation concluded. (RDG)  
Items 153 and 154 were heard collectively. Brent Carson, Esq. appeared on behalf of the 
Applicants. Financial Analyst Paul Servello detailed the application and indicated staff 
support. Approved 2-0 



 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

155. Docket 22-05019 The Application of Double Eagle Relocation, LLC d/b/a College H.U.N.K.S 
Hauling Junk and Moving for a certificate of public convenience and necessity to provide 
household goods moving service within Washoe, Storey, Douglas, Lyon, Churchill Counties and 
Carson City, Nevada on the one hand and points and places within the State of Nevada on the 
other. Staff investigation concluded. (GA)  
Financial Analyst Paul Servello detailed the application and indicated staff support. Approved 2-0 

VOLUNTARY CANCELLATIONS 

156. Docket 22-04020 The voluntary cancellation of household goods moving services of Summerlin 
Movers, LLC d/b/a Summerlin Movers, CPCN 33684.  Staff investigation concluded. 
Financial Analyst Paul Servello detailed the application and indicated staff support.  
Approved 2-0 

157. Docket 22-07021 The voluntary cancellation of charter bus services of BB Express, LLC, 
CPCN 2241, Sub 1. Staff investigation concluded. 
Financial Analyst Paul Servello detailed the application and indicated staff support.   
Approved 2-0 

158. Docket 22-08026 The voluntary cancellation of consent-only tow car services of Ceasar 
Escoffie Euan, d/b/a High Speed Towing, CPCN 7355.  Staff investigation concluded. 
Financial Analyst Paul Servello detailed the application and indicated staff support.   
Approved 2-0 

159. Docket 22-09021 The voluntary cancellation of household goods moving services of CPO 
Enterprises, LLC, d/b/a Christopher Moving, CPCN 3360, Sub 1.  Staff investigation concluded. 
Financial Analyst Paul Servello detailed the application and indicated staff support.   
Approved 2-0 

ORDERS TO SHOW CAUSE 

160. Docket 22-02025 Order to Show Cause issued to Nevada Relocation Services, LLC as to why 
Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity 3367 should not be revoked. Tabled from prior 
general sessions 
Financial Analyst Paul Servello detailed the procedural history of the docket. Brent Carson, Esq. 
appeared on behalf of the carrier. Motion to table the item to the next subsequent Agenda – 
Approved 2-0 

161. Docket 22-09008 Order to Show Cause issued to C & J Development Enterprises d/b/a Custom 
Towing as to why Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity 7061 should not be revoked.  
Financial Analyst Paul Servello detailed the procedural history of the docket. Revocation of 
CPCN Approved 2-0 



 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

162. Docket 22-09009 Order to Show Cause issued Uthiopia, LLC d/b/a Winner Transportation as to 
why Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity 2151 should not be revoked.  
Financial Analyst Paul Servello detailed the procedural history of the docket.  Revocation of 
CPCN Approved 2-0 

163. Docket 22-09011 Order to Show Cause issued American Transport, LLC d/b/a Royal Towing as 
to why Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity 7424 should not be revoked.  
Financial Analyst Paul Servello detailed the procedural history of the docket. Tony Abutangelo, 
Esq. and Brent Carson, Esq. appeared on behalf of the carrier.  Mr. Abutangelo stated the carrier 
would be submitting an extension to the temporary discontinuance.  Item tabled to the next 
subsequent Agenda – Approved 2-0 

APPLICATIONS TO DISMISS 

164. Docket 18-10024 The Application of Chiva Rumbera, LLC for a certificate of public convenience 
and necessity for scenic tour authority within the State of Nevada. Deputy Commissioner’s Motion 
to Dismiss Application. (GA) 
Item removed from Agenda prior to consideration. 

165. Docket 20-08016 The Application of Sky Canyon Towing Corp. for a certificate of public 
convenience and necessity for consent-only tow car authority within the State of Nevada.  Deputy 
Commissioner’s Motion to Dismiss Application. (GA) 
Item removed from Agenda prior to consideration. 

166. Docket 21-02011 The Application of E.A.C. Towing, LLC for a certificate of public convenience 
and necessity for consent-only tow car authority within the State of Nevada.  Deputy Commissioner’s 
Motion to Dismiss Application. (DG) 
Item removed from Agenda prior to consideration. 

167. Docket 21-02017 The Application of A1A Towing Service, LLC for a certificate of public 
convenience and necessity for consent-only tow car authority within the State of Nevada.  Deputy 
Commissioner’s Motion to Dismiss Application. (DG) 
Item removed from Agenda prior to consideration. 

168. Docket 21-03007 The Application of ARCU2, LLC for a certificate of public convenience and 
necessity for consent-only tow car authority within the State of Nevada.  Deputy Commissioner’s 
Motion to Dismiss Application. (GA) 
Item removed from Agenda prior to consideration. 

169. Docket 21-05024 The Application of Freddy’s Towing, LLC for a certificate of public convenience 
and necessity for consent-only tow car authority within the State of Nevada.  Deputy Commissioner’s 
Motion to Dismiss Application. (DG) 
Item removed from Agenda prior to consideration. 

170. Docket 21-10019 The Application of Tic Tac Tow Las Vegas, LLC for a certificate of public 
convenience and necessity for consent-only tow car authority within the State of Nevada.  Deputy 
Commissioner’s Motion to Dismiss Application. (DG) 
Item removed from Agenda prior to consideration. 



 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

171. Docket 21-11003 The Application of J & T Towing, LLC for a certificate of public convenience 
and necessity for consent-only tow car authority within the State of Nevada. Deputy Commissioner’s 
Motion to Dismiss Application. (DG) 
Item removed from Agenda prior to consideration. 

172. Docket 21-12009 The Application of TTHD, LLC d/b/a City Lights Towing for a certificate of 
public convenience and necessity for consent-only tow car authority within the State of Nevada. 
Deputy Commissioner’s Motion to Dismiss Application. (DG) 
Item removed from Agenda prior to consideration. 

DISCUSSION ITEMS 

173. Docket 22-09016 Discussion regarding Reno Tahoe Movers request for a fuel surcharge for 
household goods movers and whether or not there is sufficient interest to open a workshop for the 
purpose of developing said surcharge. 
Luke O’Brien, Bekins, appeared and stated the addition of a fuel surcharge would be beneficial.  
No other household goods movers appeared. Item tabled Approved 2-0  

174. Docket 22-09035 Discussion regarding Non-Emergency Medical Transportation (“NEMT”) 
providers, Common Carriers Vs. Contract Carriers, and Staff’s proposal for modifications. 
Item removed from Agenda prior to consideration. 

175. Public Comment 
Luke O’Brien stated again, the fuel surcharge would be very beneficial. 

176. Adjournment 
Meeting adjourned at 3:10 p.m. 




